TOWN OF EAST KINGSTON, NH
SELECTMEN’S PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, APRIL 12, 2010

7:00pm — Bob Levine, Margaret Powell, Road Agent Mi& Gallant & Conservation Commission
Chairman Dennis Quintal

7:15PM — Building Inspector Raymond Donald

7:30PM — Solid Waste & Recycling Committee memberRob Caron, Dan Guilmette, Ron Morales and
Teresa Pendell (Duncan MacLeod bsent).

ATTENDING: Selectmen Richard S. Poelaert, Matthew B. Dwormaand David R. Pendell, Jr.
Others Attending: Bob Levine, Margaret Powell, Jess Bibeau, Amanda Gibbons, Matt Gallant,
Dennis Quintal, Ray Donald, Rob Caron, Ron MoralesR. Scott Urwick, & Marilyn Bott.

Chairman Poelaert called this Selectmen’s Public M#ing to order at 6:30PM.

MINUTES: The Board reviewed the Selectmen’s public & nonlguineeting minutes dated 3/31/2010.
Chairman PoelaeMIOTIONED to approve and sign the public meeting minutgsrasented. Mr. Dworman
seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

Mr. PendellMOTIONED to approve and sign the nonpublic meeting minasearitten. Mr. Dworman
seconded. Motion carried 3-0.

REGISTER: The Board reviewed the check register. Chairmaeigd@otMOTIONED to approve and sign the
check register dated 3/31/10-04/12/10, in the arnoti$49,763.07. Mr. Dworman seconded. Motion eat3-
0.

MS-5: The Board reviewed the MS-5 as prepared by the@sdor year ending 12/31/2009. Chairman
PoelaerMOTIONED to approve and sign as presented. Mr. Dwormamsiscb Motion carried 3-0.

EXEMPTION: The Board reviewed a Veterans’ Exemption applcgatnoting the application has been
reviewed and all the necessary criteria has be¢n@hairman PoelaeMOTIONED to approve and sign the
application for the exemption for MBL #8-2-7-49A) Maplevale Road. Mr. Dworman seconded. Motion
carried 3-0.

MRI : The Board reviewed a contract with MRI to condssrtvices for the Town of East Kingston. Mr. Pehdel
MOTIONED to approve the expenditure and sign the contadang with a cover letter and an adjustment to
add two part-time employees. Chairman Poelaertrgbszh Motion carried 3-0.

POLICE CRUISER: It was noted the Police Chief has acquired a Zoff8 Crown Victoria police cruiser. It
was also noted the cruiser will be added to therswsurance. Chairman Poelaert noted the Schidaiat
add the ball field dugouts, which were built in 8% 95 timeframe, to their insurance policy, theref they
were not covered during the recent wind/rain stang the claim was not approved.

BUDGET: The Board received thé'tjuarter report of the budget, noting we have keteR0% of revenues
and have expended 25% of the appropriations a8af210.

FIRE DEPT.: It was noted the three recent applicants for itteedepartment have all received successful
background checks.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes Monday, April 12, 2010 — 201004 12selpubmi 1



FEMA: It was noted there are currently seminars beid Ine FEMA for filing for reimbursement for the
declared emergency wind/rain storm in Feb. 201@. HOC Director, Sarah Gallant attended the senmnar
Hampton Falls today.

It was further noted the graded drill will be helldring the day on Wed. May's

E-MAIL ADDRESSES: The Town Report delivery included a form askinggarticipation in forming a
Town wide data base of e-mail addresses for thegsearof providing emergency notices to residends tan
date, only 18 have been submitted to the Selecsr@fiice. The Board members discussed options and
thought they should try to keep collecting data sngghired whether the Town Clerk could ask resideviten
they register their vehicles if they would be widito fill out the form, and also thought maybe Biementary
School could provide a form to the parents of tiuelents.

BTLA: It was acknowledged that one property owner Had fvith the Board of Tax & Land Appeals against
the denial he received on his abatement for 22nJBslad.

LIBRARY: Mr. Pendell stated he has spoken with the inseradguster regarding the leaks at the library, and
they are investigating why it is leaking. The cldias not been denied; it is ongoing.

CONSERVATION EASEMENTS: Mr. Pendell reported that it is acceptable fordgaing on conservation
easements.

LEVINE/POWELL: At 7:00PM, Mr. Robert Levine and owner of recordnglaret Powell of 1 Bioteau Drive,
met with the Board to discuss the driveway situgtadong with Jesse Bibeau & Amanda Gibbons, owakrs
record of 2 Bioteau Drive, who share the same draye and also with the Road Agent (Matt Gallant) &
Conservation Commission Chairman (Dennis Quintal).

Mr. Levine stated that they were concerned afterfevent, and then there was"a&ent. (The area
received 3 major rain storms in the February/M&@h0 timeframe, and there was flooding of GilesdRaad
this shared driveway at 1 & 2 Bioteau Drive).

He stated he was able to have Rick Dube of LewiklBis come out and repair the bridge/driveway as i
washed out again.

It(\j/vas also noted the Board of Selectmen met onn&sdhy, 3/31, and on Thursday, 4/1, we experietieed
3 event.

Mr. Levine stated that Mr. Dube found out from Read Agent (Matt Gallant) on Wed. night 3/31, thnet
Board of Selectmen had decided not to do anymorg tedix the driveway or put a culvert back in.e ldtated
on Thu. 4/1, he was again stranded at his house.

Mr. Levine opined that it seems like the Board efeStmen’s attitude has changed. He added thatA-Edvhe
out, and he was not notified. He found out thatftbeen wasn’t going to do any more work on the roatk
wants to get the situation resolved, and he thih&se has been a change in the position from tlaedBaf
Selectmen. Mr. Pendell inquired about what happéméween theSiand 3 events. Culverts were bought,
Lewis Builders had them delivered during tfi&iicident, and the Road Agent put them in.

Mr. Levine wants to know what is the position o tRoard of Selectmen to get this mitigated? Mr.deén

responded the Town cannot spend the Road Agend'gdiwn private driveways. Mr. Pendell added he
admitted that with the pregnant woman at 2 Biotedaue, he thought is was an emergency situatiod,en

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes Monday, April 12, 2010 — 201004 12selpubmi 2



wanted to be sure they could get out. He furtteded again that we can’t keep spending money iwatpr
driveways.

Mr. Levine responded that the road is the causbeoproblem, not the driveway.

Everyone acknowledged, years ago, the former ToaadRAgent (Rossi), and the former owner of record
(Bioteau), split the cost 50/50 with the Town corgrabor and Bioteau covering the materials.

Mr. Levine stated, “we need to get it fixed.” It skeed out a second time, what is the position offthen?
Road Agent M. Gallant informed everyone that he aradg notified one hour prior to FEMA’s arrival.

Mr. Dworman stated the Board of Selectmen needsttuds their position and it was the kindness efftbwn
to do it in the first place; it is not in the norhsaope of the Town to perform the repairs.

Mr. Dworman offered that the culvert under GilesaRas sufficient, but maybe the culvert under theedvay
is inadequate.

Mr. Levine responded with all do respect, if yonddave a license, you can't say that, and Mr.r@aliraised
his hand notifying Mr. Levine that he does haviarise.

Mr. Pendell stated the two deeds to the propeftig® #2 Bioteau Drive) state that the repairs@reered
between the two homeowners of the properties.

Mr. Levine stated it is caused by the water actiossoad; it is not from the homeowner. He thirles ¢ulvert
does not have the capacity it needs to keep theritatving. When there is a storm surge, the isstead. He
inquired about a hazard mitigation plan at the dam.

Mr. Levine stated he has an issue that he warksdw if the Town is willing to work with them. Halded
Steve Cummings has suggested another culvert.iklesth 3-foot culvert is not big enough.

Dennis Quintal stated that when he first lookethest, his research revealed that no permit was wmirévere is
nothing on file on the property. If there was, tiaéculation for the culvert would have been stated.

He thinks the driveway was put in illegally, aspermits were issued due to the wetlands impacpraeded
the State of NH’s rules, and stated that repainsbeadone without a permit; it is allowed by theleseds
bureau; but after the emergency, an applicationt imeisonducted. When he inspected the sight, he was
surprised at the material that has been impactetéwetlands. He further stated it is the respgwlityi of the
homeowner to get the proper permits.

A storm water analysis would be done, and the whest goes through the Town regardless of the $iteo
culvert. He believes the driveway was not put ithyroper permits from the State. The time is nowet it
done right. It should be properly fixed. Mr. Legistated the driveway and bridge are okay untiktiea
storm surge, then the water comes across the rahdlbthe water can't get through the 3-foot culast
enough.

Margaret Powell asked if it is their personal regpbility, or is the Town willing to work with the

homeowners? She thinks the Town bears some reggapsit was noted the Town has tried to maintain
access for the residents for emergencies.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes Monday, April 12, 2010 — 201004 12selpubmi 3



It was noted it is still the responsibility of themeowner to maintain the culvert. Mr. Levine datee
situation still needs to be permanated. The impatite wetlands needs to be permanated properly.

Dennis Quintal suggested that he contact the 8iajet a directive. Dennis added he represents the
Conservation Commission and said it all needs tpdsmanated. Mr. Levine asked if we are here twgydb
resolve it, so that it won’t occur again, or hidghimd the rules and regulations with the State?

It was acknowledged that Road Agent Matt Gallamt &alectman Dave Pendell had offered to help hinmgu
the storm because of the pregnant lady. They meg b@me up with a different decision if she wasn't
pregnant, and there was no emergency. They hagddp split the cost and work it out.

Selectman Matt Dworman added when he was asked #digosituation and wanted to know if the Town wbul
help fix his driveway, he responded that due tocih@imstances, a pregnant lady and it was an eaneyg
situation, he agreed to help out.

Mr. Levine stated common sense says this was edirt time it's happened, and it won'’t be the.l&&e
wants to put the Board of Selectmen on notice, ittsdtould be mitigated, that it needs a culvedanthe road.
If the road gets compromised, the Board of Selectare on notice. Mr. Levine stated we can talkualdose
liability it is, or we can litigate in court. It i known hazard. He thinks it is the Office of Egeercy
Management's business and that FEMA does do thisL&ine asked again if we are going to work tbget
on this or not?

Mr. Dworman responded that he thinks the culvesui§icient. Matt Gallant noted that the first ttimes he
didn’'t get there until after the water went oves thad. The third time, he, along with Derek & Mark
Brinkerhoff arrived 10-15 minutes after it went@ss the road. He said there was a 3-foot differeibé@oked
to him like the driveway was damming up. He adderldriveway can’t handle it. There is too much w#tat
flows from Great Brook and York Brook to Giles Radachis driveway.

Mr. Levine suggested diverting the water. The wetéoo high and comes rushing through coming tver
road at the guardrail.

Dennis Quintal stated that a water study shoulddree. They need an engineering firm to do iis firivate
property, and it must be filed by the property ownBennis Quintal again stated that in an emergenc
situation, it can be repaired, but then it needsetdixed with culverts that are properly sizede $iggested that
they deal with the State DES (Dept. of Environmk8tavices) on this.

Mr. Poelaert stated that if we (the Town) notifg tBtate, the State will take over the process.

The watershed will still produce the water overdneeway. Mr. Pendell recommended that he notigy $tate
and have a water study done. The Town is resp@lix the road, but not the private driveway.

Mr. Levine stated they have come to meet with tbeT because they think the Town should be involkéd.
Poelaert added once the state is notified, thelynetify the Town. The Conservation Commission \aio be
notified and become involved. The Town will bepessible for the road. He suggested Mr. Levinefpotie
state and get the permitting process and watey stiagted. We need to do something.

Mr. Poelaert added the State of NH is the poins@erand acknowledged that we need to get it redolv
Ms. Powell inquired whether FEMA will provide fumdj. Mr. Dworman responded probably not.

Mr. Levine stated that he wants to work togethet ewilaborate through the process to rectify theasion.
Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes Monday, April 12, 2010 — 201004 12selpubmi 4



Mr. Pendell responded he is okay with that, anche&d to fix the problem, if we have a problem. W¥edto
find out what is needed. We can’t say that thegte\driveway is the Town’s responsibility.

It was acknowledged that Dennis Quintal has a “ptaend Mr. Poelaert asked him what the next stepMr.
Quintal responded it is the landowner’s responsybivith regards to the impact to wetlands. It mostinitiated
by the landowner. The Town can take a look at it,is proven by the landowner. They would be éegterved
if the culvert is recommended to be changed orcegtm, or increase the size. At that point, hedcgolto the
Town for a recommendation.

Mr. Quintal added they need a written report todtate (noting after the event), and inform DES filecan
application with the state. Engineer work needseaone and provided to the Wetlands Bureau. Atpbent,
the Conservation Commission, Board of Selectmeamrithg Board, and Town Clerk receive copies, ard th
State reviews, and the Wetlands Board issues aifperm

Mr. Levine stated he wants the Board of Selectmeodperation in this matter. He wants assurancddhie
Board of Selectmen will work with him to resolvestissues. It is dangerous and a hazard.

Mr. Poelaert noted that it will be one of threes frown will look at it, private property is privageublic land is
public; they will need to look at the engineeringrp They have responsibility to the residentst&y sff
private property.

Mr. Levine informed the Board of Selectmen he haid pver $6,000 for the first two events, they hapent
for the third event, but have not yet been billedif.

Mr. Quintal stated the design will answer the questit was noted the Town is satisfied for emeyen
purposes they can get to them from Route 108 (N®okid), including a fire truck.

Dennis Quintal, Marilyn Bott, and Scott Urwick lefte meeting at 7:40PM.

Mr. Dworman stated that they bought a piece of eriypwith pre-existing conditions. They need toédn#
engineered properly now. If the report says the T oeeds to correct it, they will look at it.

Mr. Poelaert added we will keep an open mind, gmehdines of communication.
Matt Gallant added we will review the report, bbsld wait till we get it before making any decisso

At 7:45PM, the Board of Selectmen thanked thentémning in and Bob Levine, Margaret Powell, Jesse
Bibeau and Amanda Gibbons left the meeting.

DONALD: At 7:45PM, Building Inspector/Code Enforcementi€df Ray Donald met with the Board to
discuss a letter received from Ms. Conant. Whee@#khe wanted to discuss the matter in non-puMic
Donald responded, no, in public session.

The Board members were provided copies of therldteed 2/4/2010, from a resident regarding a campl
about the Building Inspector for discussion purgose

Mr. Donald said let me start by saying and refgrtimpage 2, that he did not yell at him. He thefienred to
another paragraph, and stated the installer knewules. He added he has had to establish proadble was
receiving phone calls between 6:30AM & 9:30PM; #fere, he had business cards printed that say 8AM —
5PM only. He admitted that he was upset, but stitaidhe did not yell and he did apologize to iyl He

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes Monday, April 12, 2010 — 201004 12selpubmi 5



had never met her before. He was only aggravattdtin installer. The ordinance requires the testtp be
witnessed. When he received a call from David Binlde told him protocol says Dick is his liaisomt Dave,
and Dave said he couldn’t call Dick.

Ray added he called the Road Agent and told hima# not the Road Agent’s call, but the Buildingolestor’s
call.

Mr. Donald added there is a lot of “he said, shd”sstuff in the letter. Mr. Donald referred to thetation of
him arriving late to witness the test pit, and ffered that he tells everyone they can dig the haolg he will be
there when the analysis is performed. He canmopgint an exact time when it is done. He addetllitba
thinks Mr. Pendell helped write the letter, and Mendell responded he is absolutely wrong, he dlidHe
further stated Mr. Donald is wrong on several pgint

Mr. Donald added two people have gotten upset With It is the building code requirement, not Biglding
Inspector.

Mr. Pendell added he has first hand knowledge i yelling at him. He started to give several exaspand it
was noted there is history between Mr. PendellMndonald. Mr. Donald added he apologized to tuyl

Mr. Donald noted the letter came 4 months aftbafgpened. Mr. Pendell responded she re-wrotemést as
she was so upset about it. Mr. Pendell addeddtalpesn’t want him to be like this, he asked wlayan't just
be nicer to people? Mr. Poelaert added he shoalckrthe comment to people “how can | help you?'tTha
what he should be saying.

Mr. Donald responded he follows the rules, and gktsg. Mr. Pendell stated that if Ray had bedioviong
proper protocol, we wouldn’t be here tonight.

Mr. Poelaert added she had a failed septic systathyas trying to sell her home to move. He agteatRay
needs to look at the test pit, and we need toviotize rules with the Building Inspector presenty Rdmitted
that he was abrupt, and with Deb’s help, will watéetter and apologize to her.

Mr. Poelaert added she is the nicest lady; sheeibest nurse the school has ever had. Ray respbede
thought she had gotten someone who didn’t knowules. Mr. Pendell added he just wants Ray to berrio
people.

Mr. Donald stated it was he & Bill DiProfio thatdhaome up with “kinder and gentler,” and that hé tky to
remember his own words. Mr. Donald asked if thveas anything else, Mr. Pendell responded, “no Rayg
Ray left at 8:00PM.

SOLID WASTE COMMITTEE: At 8:00PM, Rob Caron & Ron Morales, members of$loéid Waste &
Recycling Committee, met with the Board to disdh&simplementation of the new single stream reogcli
program.

Mr. Caron informed the Board that the new gray @4eq totes will be delivered to residents the veeek4/19
& 4/26 for the beginning date of Monday, Ma$.3

Mr. Caron stated they are reviewing the “newslétteat will be distributed to residents informingeim of the
new program, what can be recycled, and the calesfdacycling weeks.

Mr. Dworman opined that people need to think firsan recycle this, and only a small portion now'the
recycled.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes Monday, April 12, 2010 — 201004 12selpubmi 6



It was noted the new gray totes will be 64-gallondolid waste, and the green 96-gallon tote valfdr
recyclables. Mr. Caron added he will provide thermffices with labels to be placed on the 96 gabarrels.

It was noted the first week of the new recyclinggram pick-up will be Monday, May {0

Mr. Poelaert suggested a point person for the egfief the new carts. It was noted that WM knowesribute,
and should be able to deliver the new gray totessments without problems.

Mr. Caron informed the Board members he has hastoed with WM for recycling with the over 55
communities. For Maplevale & Cricket Hill, they Wie provided with a 30-yard roll-off, Cornerstofid
units), and Country Hills (Autumn Lane 30 units pgeoval for 36 total units) will be provided withdividual
96-gallon barrels for recycling, and they will haaveumpster for solid waste.

The Town will get full credit from these developrntefor recycling, and will be included in the retigg
calculation.

Mr. Caron asked if the Board of Selectmen woulcedghe committee the go ahead to pursue this avdinge.
Board of Selectmen agreed they should do this.

Mr. PoelaerMOTIONED to move forward with WM to make the change towlb 30-yard dumpster at
Maplevale/Cricket Hill for recycling and for solidaste and to have Cornerstone and Country Hill96Gse
gallon green recycling totes for recycling, alongfva dumpster for solid waste. Mr. Dworman secahde
Motion carried 3-0.

Mr. Caron also asked the Board of Selectmen forayab of the bagster program. He stated it isnatmai cost
of $25 for the green 8’ x 4’ bag that will hold tgp3,300 Ibs., then WM would be contacted by thembowner
for pick-up, and the resident would be billed digby WM for the pick-up service. Mr. Caron statieel is
negotiating the final costs with WM. He would litesee the bags available at the Town Officesdsidents
to purchase at $25 each.

Mr. Dworman inquired as to why the Town would offieis service, and Mr. Caron responded it is a
convenience to the residents. It will only be tbstwof the bag, and for the pick-up to the residéhey can
throw anything away, and keep it until the baguisthefore contacting WM to pick it up.

Mr. Poelaert inquired who might be the bubbly parsmaddress the concerns and issues with the reyrgm
with WM? Mr. Morales responded he doesn’t thinkiil be as much as a problem as before. He dosse't
any problems as long as people understand thahéneyto crush and flatten stuff. People will needet used
to it. Mr. Dworman added he can foresee that réegakill increase, and that we will be picking wgrycling
on a weekly basis vs. the current every other wigkekMorales responded he likes that way of thigkin

Everyone agreed that they need to encourage ptopeycle more. Mr. Poelaert offered that in Exedé
$2.00 per bag, you don't see too many blue bagsy Técycle what they can.

Mr. Morales added that they need to do due diligeard let residents know what is recyclable. Peopésl to
think that yes this is recyclable first, and thehdswaste after.

It was noted without including the over 55 commiasit the Town was previously at 20-21 tons of rexyc

material, and for Feb. 2010 we were at 28 tons. Nltrales noted the over 55 communities are verghmn
favor of recycling and do a good job.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes Monday, April 12, 2010 — 201004 12selpubmi 7



He added that in next years town report, it shdxgldhcluded the increase in tonnage collected laaicthe
Town saves. Mr. Morales added it is a time ling thay can work to lower. Mr. Poelaert noted thenoattee
has done a good job.

Mr. Caron, Mr. Morales, and Mr. Matt Gallant lefietmeeting at 8:30PM.

STORM DAMAGE: The Board was informed we have received only atienate, the others did not provide
any proposals for repairs to the Town owned bugdithat sustained damage from the wind/rain staffeb.
2010. The insurance company has also inspectdaliltkengs: Library, Town Offices, Pound School, and
Town Hall and we waiting to hear the outcome ofdla@m. The proposals totaled $35,262.00.

Mr. Poelaert suggested the contractor meet wittnthethe next meeting to discuss. Ms. Gallant abtee
schedule the appointment.

GILSTRAP: Ms. Ursula Gilstrap provided recent pictures af pr@perty at 118 South Road, which shows the
water issues she has when it rains. She is askenBaard to remedy the problem with installing & alvert.

CALENDAR: 4/15 Cemeteries & Town Hall re-open, 4/15 Planriogrd meeting, 4/26 Selectmen’s meeting
(will meet with FC to open sealed bids for firedk), 4/28 LGC Dinner, 4/29 public input on Greatnban
Exeter, 4/30 Dog licenses due, & 05/08 Planningataig Conference.

MONUMENT: Mr. Poelaert stated he talked with Mr. Lewandowveskil discussed the fire department’s idea
on moving the monument currently located in frohthe@ Fire Dept. It has been suggested that it beeah to a
more visible location, like the Library at 47 Mapd¢e Road, and he responded that it was a good badégor
the wrong reasons. The Fire Dept. is consideriagipy a Smokey the Bear in its place. It was nided
Lewandowski’'s father was involved in placing themament there.

SIGN: It was noted an estimate for an electronic signe@ at $14,505.00, and the Board members agreed i
was too expensive to pursue at this time, and tieeyl to pinch pennies.

Mr. Pendell suggested a warrant article for Mar@h12to ask the residents if they want to purchase a
electronic sign.

Mr. DwormanMOTIONED to adjourn this Selectmen’s Public Meeting at 885 Mr. Poelaert seconded.
Motion carried 3-0.

Respectfully submitted,

Deborah G. Gallant
Administrative Assistant

Richard S. Poelaert Matthew B. Dworman a\d R. Pendell, Jr.

Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes Monday, April 12, 2010 — 201004 12selpubmi 8



Town of East Kingston, NH Selectmen’s Public Meetig Minutes Monday, April 12, 2010 — 201004 12selpubmi

9



